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The Ontario State Bank Bl&ck Building is a detached, two-story, ell-shaped 
commerical and professional business building which was constructed in three 
separate consecutive units, one abutting the other. In recent years the 
third unit was removed. When all three units were completed the "Bank Block" 
had 65 feet of frontage on Euclid Avenue and about 210 feet on Main Street. 
Units one and two had ell-shaped ground plans and unit three had a rectangula 
plan, giving the building an overall ell-shape. In later years the south end 
walls of shots two and three of unit two were extended for IfO to 60 feet. 
The exterior wall of the "Bank Block" are red brick in a stretcher bond (all 
wide) coursing. The boxed cornice with decorated frieze and brackets, decor­ 
ated pediments, trim, ornate pilasters, sash, doors, filler panels above and 
below windows, and the porches across the back of the building are wood. The 
roof is essentially flat, sloping 1-J- in 12 from the rear. The only roofing 
visable from the ground is on the corner turret, gables and over the remainin 
oriel windows. The building's east facade fronts on Euclid Avenue and its 
north facade fronts on Main Street, each abutting the sidewalk.

The "Bank Block" contains elements of the Queen Anne and Eastlake Styles of 
architecture which were popular and often combined in Calif, in the 1880*s. 
Elements of Queen Anne style which are present include windows of different 
forms and shapes (semi-circular, straight-topped and oriel), windows glazed 
with sitva^ll panes of glass in the top portion, turret, galles, corbeled brick 
work and samll-scale classical detail. The ornate carved wood pilasters 
dividing the ground floor shops, the carved wood brackets and knobs of var­ 
ious forms are examples of Eastlake Style.

The most decorative elements of the "Bank BlpcVs" were the three oriel windows 
above the Ontario State Bank with pediments of the gable peaks. The oriel 
windows and pediments have been removed and plain industrial type steel wind­ 
ows, divided into 16 panes have been installed. The plain wood sash oriel 
windows of the second unit still remain, but the decorative pediments above 
them have been removed. The decorative pediment on the second unit gable has 
also been removed. The other windows of the second floor are double-hung 
plain wood sash with a finely detailed ornamental panel filling in the semi­ 
circular top of the window opening. These windows have slightly projecting 
plain lugsills. The windows of the former Ontario S^ate Bank are semi­ 
circular tri-sectAonal plain wood sash with wood panels below. The fronts 
of all the ground floor shops, except shop two of unit two, have four large 
fixed panes' of glass, above which there are eight small, one rsash windows 
each divided into nine panes. Shop two of unit two has one large fixed wind­ 
ow divided into four panes and one large fixed pane of glass, above which 
there are four small, one sash window, each divided into nine panes. 
Each of the ground floor shops has a plain flat recessed center doorway with 
plain wood double doors containing large, single rectangular glass panels a- 
bove small, signle wood panels. Above the double doors is a rectangular gla£ 
transom. There are four .exterior ground floor entrances to stairways to the 
second floor. They all have ornate carved wood pilasters on either side of 
their flat entrance openings.
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The structural soundness and general appearance of the building have deteriorated 
to the point where a restoration effort is needed. Shear cracks are visible in 
the exterior and interior brick walls and the main roof had numerous leaks in 
the past years. (The building was completely reroofed in 1977).

The decorative pediments atop the building's gables and the oriel windows over the 
former bank have been removed. The wooden porches on the first and second floors 
at the back of the building are in a highly deteriorated state. Expansion of the 
Pacific Electric Heating Company resulted in connecting openings being made in the 
interior walls of the first five shops west of the former bank. The exterior sur* 
faces of the ground floor of the "Bank Block" were painted by the last film company 
which used the building as a setting.

Even though the integrity of the "Bank Block" has been deteriorated and altered 
somewhat, it still retains enough of its significant design, aspect and feeling 
to be recognizable.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE
The significance of the Bank Block" can be assigned^to three iifferent areas: 
architecture, commerce, invention.. .. -,.<-^ r * ; ~ T

The architecture of the "Bank Block" is representative of the first era in the 
history of Ontario—an era of rapid, "Boom" growth and prosperity. Indeed, the 
1880s were the "Boom Years", not only for Ontario, but for all of Southern Calif 
and companies, such as the Ontario Land and Improvement Co. wjV'ch promoted the 
sale of land in Southern California prospered. The Ontario Land and Improvement 
Co. sold SI,015,000 worth of real estate in Ontario within two years after 
purchasing the holdings of the Chaffey Brothers Limited in March of 1886.

The setting of the "Bank Block" on historic and beautiful Euclid Avenue (1882 
and 1886) places it within half a block of the center parkway fountain erected 
by George Chaffey in 1883, within a block south and east of the San Pfldro, Los 
Angeles and Salt Lake (Union Pacific) Railroad Depot (190*f) and within a block 
of the Frankish Building (1915-16). Thus within a relatively small area it is 
possible to view architectural representatives the the first three eras in the 
history of Ontario. (NOTE:the Union Pacific Depot has been demolished)

The "Bank Blocks" distinctive architectural merit has been detailed in the 
statement of description. The "Bank Block" provides its viewer with an example 
of the combination of element from the Queen Anne and Eastlake Styles of archit­ 
ecture which were popular in California in the 1880's.

The "Bank Block" quickly became the business center of Ontario during it's 
early and formative years. The Ontario State Bank (Ontario's first) opened 
in the building in 1887. The other snaps filled rapidly with the city's finest 
merchants. Tire communities first newspaper was housed in the building for 
many years.

In 1903 E.H. Richardson moved into one of the three shops in unit 2 of the 
"Bank Block". He was an engineer for the Ontario Power Company when he first 
started making flat irons in 1902. He found the iron making business so good 
that he quit the Power Co. and moved into the "Bank Block", where he worked on 
making and improving flat irons. He felt irons could be heated quicker, more 
efficiently and more safely by electricity than on a stove. His business grew 
rapidly; and in 190if, he formed the Pacific Electric Heating Company. In 1905 
he applied for a patent on one of his improved flat irons. In 1906 he was 
granted a patent for his now famous "Hotpoint" iron. The invention of this 
iron and the fact that the company was kept in Ontario led to Ontario being

GenrralSElectriI/=LCtfer ° f the vWorld" • Richardson became affiliated with 
Company. company became the Ontario Works of the General ElectrJ
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Designed by Max Erskies? Designed by Architect George Fyfe
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